














552767 and 561326. On November 26, 2007, the Shihlin District Court of Taiwan issued a ruling
rejecting the petition, Case No. 96-Chai-Chuan-3444. On June 26, 2008, the Taiwan High Court
rejected Richtek’s appeal of the District Court’s ruling, Case No. 97-Kang-4.

121. On September 10, 2007, Richtek filed an action against uPI Semiconductor
Corporation, Powerchip Semiconductor Corporation and eleven former Richtek employees in the
Shihlin District Court of Taiwan, Case No. No. 97-Chi-3, alleging infringement of Taiwan Patent
Publication Nos. 552767 and 561326. This case is currently pending before the Shihlin District
Court.

122. On July 13, 2007, Richtek filed criminal charges with the Taipei District Court
prosecutor’s office against eleven former Richtek employees, regarding, inter alia, misappropriation
of trade secrets. The case was subsequently transferred to the Hsinchu District Court prosecutor’s
office. On September 30, 2009, the Hsinchu District Court prosecutor dismissed the charge of
misappropriation of trade secrets. On October 16, Richtek filed a motion for review of the decision
with the chief prosecutor in the Taiwan High Court.

123.  Oninformation and belief, other than the aforementioned actions, the unfair methods
of competition and unfair acts, or the subject matter thereof, have not been subject to any court or
agency litigation,

IX. THE DOMESTIC INDUSTRY

124, An industry as required by section 337(a)(1)(A) exists in the United States. An

products protected by the Asserted Patents (“Richtek Practicing Products™).
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A. Richtek’s Articles Protected by the Asserted Patents

125.  Richtek’s practicing products at least include power controllers and converters
including a family of single phase and multi-phase DC-DC controllers and products containing them
that practice one or more claims of the 190, *470, and *717 patents.

126. At least Richtek’s single phase DC-DC controllers including, inter alia, the single
phase RT8106 DC-DC controllers and products containing them practice at least claims 1-7 and 26-
27 of the "190 patent. Exhibit 48 accompanying this Complaint contains a claim chart showing
Richtek’s practice of the 190 patent.

127. At least Richtek’s single phase DC-DC controllers including, inter alia, the single
phase RT8011 DC-DC controllers and products containing them practice at least claims 1-3 and 6-9
of the 717 patent. Confidential Exhibit 49 accompanying this Complaint contains a claim chart
showing Richtek’s practice of the’717 patent.

128.  Atleast Richtek’s multi-phase DC-DC controllers include, inter alia, the multi-phase
RT8805 DC-DC controllers and products containing them practice at least claims 29 and 34 of the
’470 patent. Confidential Exhibit 50 accompanying this Complaint contains a claim chart showing
Richtek’s practice of the 470 patent.

B. Richtek’s Investments in the United States with Respect to the Articles
Protected by the Asserted Patents

129, Richtek USA has made substantial investments in the United States in the

exploitation of the *190, *717 and *470 patents. These investments include research, design,

connection with the “design-in” of DC-DC controllers that practice the asserted patents. These

investments are described in further detail in Confidential Exhibits 20-23.
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130.  Although parts are developed, fabricated and packaged in Asia, Richtek operates in
the United States through Richtek USA. Richtek USA was incorporated in California in 2004 and
started with four employees and expanded to twelve employees across two facilities in San Jose,
California and Austin, Texas. Eleven of those employees include its chief executive officer and IC
designer, chief financial officer and sales director, director of IC design, chief technical officer and
IC designer, field application engineering director, field application engineering engineer; layout
engineer, sales engineer, two marketing managers, and a sales manager. The labor of these
employees relate to a variety of DC-DC controllers including, e.g., the single phase RT8106 and
RT8011 DC-DC controllers and the multi-phase RT8805 DC-DC controller covered by one or more
claims of the 190, ’470 and 717 patents. Richtek USA made significant investments for the
compensation of these employees in exploiting Richtek’s patents reflected in Confidential Exhibit
21.

131.  Richtek USA’s facilities contain offices and laboratories for these employees who
work closely with Richtek Technology in the research, design, engineering, product development,
testing, quality control, and providing technical support in connection with the design-in of DC-DC
controllers practicing Richtek’s patents for customers in the United States. Richtek USA has made
substantial investments in its operations in San Jose, CA and Austin, TX including expenditures for
commercial rent, utilities, insurance, professional fees, travel and marketing expenses, and office

management expenses reflected in Confidential Exhibit 22. Richtek USA also made substantial

Richtek’s patents reflected in Confidential Exhibit 23.
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X. SUBSTANTIAL INJURY AND THREAT OF SUBSTANTIAL INJURY

132.  The effect of uPl and AMD’s unfair practices described above have been to
substantially injure and threaten substantial injury to the domestic industry that exists by virtue of
Richtek’s investments and activities in the United States relating to Richtek’s proprietary and trade
secret information. Richtek highlights below the indicia of substantial injury.

133.  uPI has unfairly and wrongfully derived a substantial commercial advantage in the
form of rapid entry into the power management IC products market through and because of uPI’s
misappropriation of Richtek’s proprietary and trade secret information. Through and because of
such misappropriation, uPI has unfairly avoided the need to invest substantial amounts of time,
money and effort to research, develop, engineer, test and commercially implement power
management IC solutions as did Richtek. See Wang Decl. (Confidential Exhibit 36) . As a result,
uPI has been able to lower its cost to design and develop power management IC products, including
DC-DC controllers, compete directly against Richtek by offering customers DC-DC products at
prices substantially lower than Richtek’s and capture a significant portion of Richtek’s market share.
Id. Because Richtek’s proprietary and trade secret information required significant investment,
Richtek cannot discount the cost for those investments, lower its prices to the level uPI offers
customers and compete against uPI for market share and sale of DC-DC controllers at those lower
levels gained by uPI’s misappropriation of Richtek’s proprietary and trade secret information. /d

134, Specifically, uPI’s sale of unlawful DC-DC controllers into the U.S. market has

caused Richtek to lose substantial market share in its sales of DC-DC controllers and products

containing them in the United States. /d Through and because of uPI’s misappropriation of
Richtek’s proprietary and trade secret information, uPI has avoided the need to invest substantial
amounts of time, money and effort to “design-in” or customize its DC-DC controllers for customers

in the United States. /d. Without having to pay for the added investment cost to design and develop

41



DC-DC controllers, uPl can and has unfairly lowered the prices on its power management IC
products to such low prices that Richtek is no longer able to compete for certain products and thus
unfairly capturing Richtek’s market share. /d. The substantial injury sustained by Richtek as a
result of uPI’s sale of unlawful DC-DC controllers into the United States is further detailed in
Confidential Exhibit 36.

135. More specifically, uPI gained an unlawful head start for at least its single phase
uP6101 DC-DC controller and multi-phase uP6201 DC-DC controller by misappropriating
Richtek’s proprietary and trade secret information to its advantage and avoiding all the effort and
costs needed for building-up library files, defining product requirements, designing circuit
schematics and graphical layouts, testing and obtaining customer feedback, and other necessary
information for developing an IC product on its own in contrast to the effort expended by Richtek to
develop at least its single phase and multi-phase DC-DC controllers (e.g., RT8011 and RT8805).

136.  uPI solicited and continues to solicit business from many of Richtek’s power
management IC solution customers, including but not limited to AMD, through and because of uPI’s
misappropriation of Richtek’s proprietary and business trade secret information. Id. AMD willfully
and knowingly profited from the misappropriation of Richtek’s proprietary and trade secret
information because uPI was able to pass on to AMD lower costs and prices for DC-DC controllers
used in its Radeon® HD graphics cards. uPl and AMD have conducted sales, marketing and
customer support activities in the United States and uPI and AMD have marketed and sold, and

continues to market and sell in the United States, services and power management IC solutions that

137.  Through and because of the misappropriation of the proprietary business and

technical trade secret information, uPl and AMD have imported, is importing or is reasonably likely
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to import significant commercial quantities of uPI’s infringing DC-DC controllers and products
containing them including AMD’s Radeon® HD graphics cards and related boards into the United
States, has sold, is selling or is reasonably likely to sell significant commercial quantities of uPI’s
infringing DC-DC controllers and products containing them for importation into the United States
and/or has sold, is selling or is reasonably likely to sell significant commercial quantities of uPI’s
infringing DC-DC controllers and products containing them within the United States after
importation significantly sooner than uPI would have been able to had they not misappropriated
Richtek’s proprietary and trade secret information. uPl and AMD’s misappropriation thereby
resulted in a significant reduction in sales of Richtek’s DC-DC controllers and products containing
them in the United States and correspondingly significant reduction in Richtek’s revenue. Id.

138.  Unless the Commission issues appropriate exclusion orders, appropriate cease and
desist orders and other further relief that this Commission deems just and proper, uPl and AMD will
continue to wrongfully rely on and use Richtek’s business and technical trade secrets to manufacture
and import additional significant commercial quantities of infringing DC-DC controllers and
products containing them into the United States, sell additional significant commercial quantities of
infringing DC-DC controllers within the United States after importation, thereby further
substantially and irreparably injuring, further threatening substantial and irreparable injury to and
further creating a tendency to substantially and irreparably injure the domestic industry.

XI. RELIEF REQUESTED

(i) Institute an immediate investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of
1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, into the unlawful importation into the United
States, the sale for importation into the United States, or the sale within the United

States after importation by Respondents of DC-DC controllers and products
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(1)
(iii)

(iv)

containing the same that infringe one or more asserted claims of the U.S. Patent Nos.
7,315,190; 6,414,470 and 7,132,717 or were designed and developed using Richtek’s
proprietary and trade secret information that was misappropriated by Respondents.
Determine that there has been a violation of Section 337;

Issue a permanent exclusion order, pursuant to Section 337(d) of the Tariff Act of
1930, as amended, excluding from entry into and sale within the United States all
DC-DC controllers and products containing the same that are manufactured,
imported, or sold by or on behalf of Respondents, their affiliates, successors, or
assigns that infringe one or more claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 7,315,190; 6,414,470
and 7,132,717, or were designed and developed using Richtek’s proprietary and trade
secret information that was misappropriated by Respondents.

Issue a permanent cease and desist order, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(f),
prohibiting Respondents, their affiliates, and others acting on their behalf, from
importing, admitting or withdrawing from a foreign trade zone, marketing,
advertising, demonstrating, warehousing inventory for distribution, distributing,
offering for sale, selling, licensing, repairing, maintaining, updating, using, or
transferring outside the United States for sale in the United States any of the accused
products that infringe one or more claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 7,315,190, 6,414,470

and 7,132,717, or were designed and developed using Richtek’s proprietary and trade

Issue such other and further relief as the Commission deems just and proper based on

the facts determined by the investigation and the authority of the Commission.
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DATED: December 2, 2009

Yitai Hu

Kevin C. Trock

Steven Hemminger

S.H. Michael Kim

Lenny Huang

ALSTON & BIRD LLP

2 Palo Alto Square

3000 El Camino Real, Suite 400
Palo Alto, CA 94306
Telephone: (650) 838-2000
Fax: (650) 838-2001

Paul F. Brinkman

S. Alex Lasher

ALSTON & BIRD LLP

The Atlantic Building

950 F Street, NW
Washington, D.C. 20004-1404
Telephone: 202-756-3404
Fax: 202-654-4984
richtek-ITC@alston.com
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VERIFICATION

1. I, Albert Chen declare, in accordance with 19 C.FR. §§ 2104 and
210.12(a), under penalty of perjury, that the following statements are true:
2. ] am the Manager of the Legal and Intellectual Property Departments for

Richtek Technology Corp. and am duly authorized to sign this Complaint on behalf of

Richtek.
3, I have read the foregoing Complaint.
4. To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, based upon

reasonable inquiry, the foregoing Complaint is well-founded in fact and is warranted by
existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of
existing law or the establishment of new law. ‘

5. The allegations or other factual contentions have either evidentiary support
or are likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further
investigation or discovery. |

6. The foregoing Complaint is not being filed for any improper purpose, such as

to harass or cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation.

2
Executed this day of December, 2009,

/Bbet Chon,

Albert Chen






